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I STATEMENT OF FACTS
As authorized by RCW 18.130.050 and RCW 34.05.479, on
August 17, 1999 the Washington State Pharmacy Board summarily
suspended the professional licenses of pharmacist Michael Jones, who
owned and operated a franchise Medicine Shoppe pharmacy in Marysville,
after he received unsatisfactory scores at two inspections performed by
Pharmacy Investigators Phyllis Wene and Stan Jeppesen. CP 267-73, 280,
287 — 89. Jones, who had failed an inspection previously in 1998, knew
from his prior experience that the investigators would re-inspect his
pharmacy following his initial July 12, 1999 unsatisfactory inspection.’
Although Jones had previously managed to bring his pharmacy into
c6mpliance by the time of the required re—inspection, this time Jones failed
to do so by the investigators™ August 10, 1999 re-inspection. CP 273,‘287
— 89. Thus, on August 16, 1999, Pharmacy Board Executive Director
Donald Williams filed an ex parte motion for summary suspension, as well
as a Statement of Charges against Jones. CP 273, 291 — 318. The
following day, the Board granted Williams’ motion, and Jones was served

with the Board’s order. CP 274, 319 — 26, 334 — 36.

! When a pharmacy receives an unsatisfactory (below 80) score at an inspection,
WAC 246-869-190 requires that the pharmacy raise its score to satisfactory {90 or better)
within fourteen (14) days. Thus, in December 1998 Jones’ pharmacy received an
unsatisfactory score at an inspection, but he corrected enough deficiencies to raise his
score to satisfactory by the re-inspection in February 1999. CP 212 - 13.



Any pharmacist who is affected by a summary action has the right

to demand a prompt hearing, which must occur within twenty (20) days of

the summary action. The pharmacist must exercise this right within ten

(10) days of being served with the order of summary action. WAC 246-

11-340. Jones never exercised his right to a prompt hearing.

Instead, Jones filed a motion to stay the summary suspension and

expressly waived his right to a prompt hearing.” CP 337 — 38, 397 - 403.

Jones and his attorney submitted declarations to the Board, acknowledging

many of the violations supporting the summary action, but claiming that

these problems had either been corrected or else did not pose a risk to

public safety. CP 340 — 52. These declarations established:

Jones had been unable to locate or reconcile inventory records of
Schedule II controlled substances and required DEA forms.
CP 343 - 44,214 - 15.

Jones could not show patient authorizations for the high number of
non-child resistant containers he was using. CP 342, 349.

Prescription items that were noted at the July 1999 inspection as
showing incorrect National Drug Code (NDC) numbers at the July
1999 inspection were still on his shelves at the August 1999 re-
inspection. CP 349.

Outdated prescription items that had “slipped through the cracks™
were still on Jones’ shelves at the August 1999 re-inspection.
CP 343, 350.

A copy of Jonés’ August 27, 1999 Answer to the Statement of Charges, in

which he waived his right to a prompt hearing, is attached as Appendix A.



e The feature of Jones’ automated patient records system that detects
for potentially fatal adverse drug interactions and allergic reactions
of patients was turned off. CP 274, 341.

e At the iﬁspections, Jones had been unable to use his automated
patient records system to construct an audit trail. CP 344.

On August 30, 1999, a three-member panel of the Board denied Jones’
motion to stay the summary suspension, reasoning that Jones had “a
history of committing violations of the pharmacy law, correcting the
violations, but then violating the laws again,” and concluding that “the
concems for the protection of the public outweigh[ed his] assertions that
the violations have been corrected.”” CP 357.

Next, on September 13, 1999 Jones filed a motion for an expedited
hearing, even though he had expressly waived his right to a prompt
hearing just seventeen ( 17) days before. CP 706. Nevertheless, a Health
Law Judge granted Jones’ motion and set the hearing for October, 21
1999, the next available hearing date. CP 710 — 713. Later, the hearing
date was cox'ltinued to December 2, 1999 to permit the State to amend the
Statement of Charges. CP 714 — 717. Finding good cause for this brief
continuance, the Health Law Judge noted that Jones had waived his right
to a prompt hearing and that his case was still “being handled

expeditiously and made a priority matter.” CP 717.

* A copy of the Board’s order denying the motion to stay the summary
suspension is attached as Appendix B.



Jones never availed himself of the hearing. On January 11, 2000,
he and his attorney signed a stipulated order, agreeing to the suspension of
his pharmacist’s license with stay and revocation of the pharmacy location
license without stay for a period of five years, in addition to other
conditions and restrictions." CP 412 — 31. Based on Jones’ stipulation,
the Board found that he had engaged in unprofessional conduct, operated
his pharmacy in a manner below the standard of care, and placed his
patients at serious risk of significant harm. CP 420, 423. As mandated by
RCW 18.130.160, in the stipulated order Jones expressly agreed to
~“assume all costs of complying with [the] Order.” CP 424. Jones never
appealed the Board’s order to the Superior Court, as permitted by
RCW 18.130.200.

Later, Jones filed this lawsuit asserting a ciaim under 42 U.S.C. §
1983 for denial of procedural due process, as well as claims for
negligence, recklessness, tortious interference with a business expectancy,
and injunctive relief. CP 470 — 77, 505 —21. Jones’ § 1983 claims, which
sought damages, were asserted only against Williams, Wene, and Jeppesen
in their individual capacities. CP 474. Jones’ claim for injunctive relief
was asserted against the State only. CP 476. Jones’ other state law tort

claims were asserted against all defendants. CP 474 — 76.

* A copy of the stipulated final order of the Board is attached as Appendix C.



The defendants moved for summary judgment on multiple
grounds. CP at 432-58. Based on Jones’ concessions, the trial court
dismissed all Jones’ claims except for his § 1983 claims and his claims for
negligent supervision and tortious interference. CP 22 — 24, 128 — 31,
179-210, 223-27. On discretionary review, the Court of Appeals reversed
the trial court’s partial denial of summary judgment, holding that
(1) Williams was entitled to absolute prosecutorial immunity on all claims,
(2) Williams, Wene, and Jeppesen were entitled to qualified immunity on
Jones® § 1983 claims, and (3) Jones’ negligent supervision and tortious
interference claims were barred by his stipulation to the Board’s agreed
order and failure to exhaust administrative remedies. Jones v. State,
140 Wn. App. 476, 480, 166 P.3d 1219 (2007). Jones now asks this Court
to reverse the Court of Appeals and reinstate these three claims.

I1. ARGUMENT
A. The Court of Appeals Correctly Held that Jones’ 42 U.S.C. §

1983 Procedural Due Process Claims are Barred by Absolute

and Qualified Immunity

Jones’ procedural due process § 1983 claini, which is based oﬁ the
lack of a pre-deﬁrivation hearing when his licenses were summarily
suspended, was asserte.d only against Williams, Wene, and Jeppesen in

their individual capacities. CP 474. However, given that Jones has not

challenged the Court of Appeals’ holding that Williams is entitled to



absolute quasi-prosecutorial immunity’, he must now intend to pursue his
§ 1983 claims against Investigators Wene and Jeppesen only. Wene and
Jeppesen’s investigative conduct does not give rise to a procedural due
process violation. Moreover, given Jones’ admissions to numerous
serious health and safety violations, invoking the summary suspension
procedure authorized by RCW 18.130.050 and RCW 34.05.479 was
objectively reasonable. Thus, the Court of Appeals’ holding that all three
individual defendants are immune should be affirmed.

Once a defendant in a § 1983 case has raised qualified immunity, the
plaintiff bears the burden of showing the defendant’s conduct violated a
clearly established constitutional right. Robinson v. City of Seattle,
119 Wn.2d 34, 65-66, 830 P.2d 318 (1992). Where an official’s conduct
is objectively reasonable when measured against the clearly established
law, the official is entitled to qualified immunity. /d. at 65.

Jones cannot maintain a procedural due process claim against

Wene and Jeppesen where their conduct was limited to completing

> The Court of Appeals correctly held that Williams, an agency official
responsible for initiating and prosecuting the disciplinary action against Jones, was
entitled to absolute prosecutorial immunity. See, e.g., Hannum v. Friedt, 88 Wn. App.
881, 947 P.2d 760 (1997), Olsen v. Idaho State Bd. Of Medicine, 363 F.3d 916 (9™ Cir.
2004); Mischler v. Nevada State Bd. Of Medical Examiners, 191 F.3d 998, 1008 (9" Cir.
1999). This absolute immunity extends to the State as Williams’ employer. Dutton v.
Washington Physicians Health Program, 87 Wn. App. 614, 619, 943 P.2d 298 (1997).
While Jones argued below that Williams was not entitled to absolute prosecutorial
immunity, he did not challenge Williams’ absolute immunity in his Petition for this
Court’s review.



inspection reports. As the Court of Appeals in Hannum held, an
investigator’s conduct does not give rise to a § 1983 procedural due
process claim where the focus of the claim is the plaintiff’s loss of a
license. Hannum, 88 Wn. App. at 890 — 91. As investigators, Wene and
Jeppesen did not deprive Jones of his license. Williams, not Wene or
Jeppesen, initiated the summary action. CP 273. Thus, Wene and
Jeppesen committed no procedural due process violation.

Even assuming that Wene and Jeppesen’s conduct implicated
Jones’ procedural due process rights, a pre-deprivation héaring was not
required under the facts of this case. In Hodel v. Virginia Surface Mining
& Reclamation Assoc., 452 U.S. 264, 101 S. Ct. 2352, 69 L. Ed. 2d 1
(1981), the Supreme Court recognized that summary action is appropriate
in emergency situations where there is a risk to public safety. Id. at 300.
Federal appellate courts, such as the Second Circuit, have held that Hodel
requires that courts give substantial deference to officials who invoke such
emergency procedures:

[Wihere there is competent evidence allowing the official

to reasonably believe that an emergency does in fact exist,

or that affording pre-deprivation process would be

otherwise impractical, the discretionary invocation of an

emergency procedure results in a constitutional violation

only .where such invocation is arbitrary or amounts to an
abuse of discretion. :



Cantanzaro v. Weiden, 188 F.3d 56, 62 (2d Cir. 1999). The Ninth and
Sixth Circuits have adopted a similar analysis. Id. at 62 — 63 (citing
Armendariz v. Penman, 31 F.3d 860, 866 (9™ Cir. 1994), vacated in part
on other grounds, 75 F.3d 1311 (9" Cir. 1996) (en banc) and Harris v.
City of Akron, 20 F.3d 1396, 1404 — 05 (6™ Cir. 1994)).

Here, Jones admitted to numerous significant health and safety
violations in declarations he submitted to the Pharmacy Board. Jones,
140 Wn. App. at 491 — 92.° The Court of Appeals noted that conduct
similar to Jones’ has caused significant injuries to pharmacy patients and
has even subjected pharmacists to prosecution. Id. at 492, fn. 26 (citing
cases). At a minimum, competent evidence existed to support the
summary action.

Previously, Jones argued that the delay betw>een the time of the
inspections and the filing of the State’s motion for a summary susioensio‘n
gave rise to a question of fact that precluded a finding of qualified
immunity. However, the deferential standard discussed in Cantanzaro

prohibits precisely this type of hindsight second-guessing:

% See pp. 10 — 17 of the State’s Opening Brief filed in the Court of Appeals for a
discussion of the specific health and safety violations admitted by Jones. In the trial
court, the State argued that Jones was judicially estopped from contradicting his earlier
declarations before the Pharmacy Board in order to create a sham issue of fact. CP 149 -
153. The Court of Appeals incorrectly stated in its opinion that the State did not raise this
issue in the trial court. Jones, 140 Wn. App. at 495, fn. 32. However, ultimately the
Court agreed that the reasonableness of summary action had to be judged in light of
Jones’ admissions to the Board in his 1999 declarations. Id. at 492.



This somewhat deferential standard finds strong support in
policy considerations. The law should not discourage
officials from taking prompt action to insure the public
safety. By subjecting a decision to invoke an emergency
procedure to an exacting hindsight analysis, where every
mistake, even if made in good faith, becomes a
constitutional violation, we encourage delay and thereby
potentially increase the public’s exposure to dangerous
conditions. This quandary is exactly what these emergency
procedures are designed to prevent, and is the primary
reason they are constitutionally acceptable.

If an official believes that the public is in immediate
danger, he or she should not hesitate to invoke an
emergency procedure for fear of being sued, and being
liable for damages should his or her decision turn out to be
incorrect in hindsight. If procedural due process violations
were to be as broadly defined as Plaintiffs-Appellants
would define them, in order to avoid the possibility of
committing any constitutional violation, an official charged
with discretion would be in the anomalous position of
almost being forced to hold a hearing to determine whether
or not an emergency exists, so as to then determine whether
a predeprivation hearing is constitutionally required. This
cannot be the proper result.

Cantanzaro, 188 F.3d at 63. Furthermore, it is undisputed that Williams
decided when to seek summary action, not Wene or Jeppesen. CP 273.
Again, Jones has not challenged Williams’ absolute immunity, and Wene

and Jeppesen cannot be held liable for Williams” discretionary decision to

seek a summary suspension on August 16, 1999 rather than earlier.

The Court of Appeals Correctly Held Jones’ State Law Tort
Claims Are Barred By His Failure to Exhaust Administrative

Remedies and Stipulation to the Board’s Final Order



The Court of Appeals correctly held that Jones’ tortious
interference and negligent supervision claims, which focus on the alleged
wrongful suspension of his licenses, are barred by his failure to exhaust
administrative remedies. This Court has long recognized that before
seeking relief from the courts with respect to an agency’s action, a litigant
must exhaust the agency’s administrative remedies:

Generally, if an administrative proceeding can alleviate the

harmful consequences of a governmental activity at issue, a

litigant must first pursue that remedy before the courts will

intervene. The doctrine applies in cases where a claim 1s
originally cognizable by an agency which has clearly
defined mechanisms for resolving complaints by aggrieved
parties and the administrative remedies can provide the
relief sought.
Smoke v. City of Seattle, 132 Wn.2d 214, 223 — 24, 937 P.2d 186 (1997)
(citations omitted). The exhaustion doctrine gives proper deference to
agency officials who have expertise in areas outside the conventional
experience of judges’, permits agencies to develop the necessary factual
background on which to reach a final decision and to correct their own
errors, and avoids unnecessary court intervention. South Hollywood Hills
Citizens Ass’n for Preservation of Neighborhood Safety and Envir't v. King

County 101 Wn.2d 68, 73 — 74, 677 P.2d 114 (1984). Both this Court and

the Court of Appeals have extended the exhaustion doctrine to tort actions.

" Given that it is comprised mostly of pharmacists, during adjudicative
proceedings the Board is permitted to “use its expertise and specialized knowledge to
evaluate and draw inferences from the evidence presented to it.” WAC 246-11-160.

10



See, e.g., Rains v. Dept. of Fisheries, 89 Wn.2d 740, 743 — 44, 575 P.2d
1057 (1978); Laymon v. Wash. Dep’t. of Natural Resources, 99 Wn. App.
518, 528, 994 P.2d 232 (2000); Reninger v. Dept. of Corrections, 79 Wn.
App. 623, 901 P.2d 325 (1995), affirmed on other grounds, 134 Wn.2d 437,
951 P.2d 782 (1998); Dils v. Dept. of Labor & Industries, 51 Wn. App. 216,
220 —-21,752 P.2d 1357 (1988).

1. Exhaustion is Required by the Uniform Disciplinary
Act

Where a statute creates an extensive regulatory framework that is
specifically designed to address the plaintiff’s complaints, both this Court
and the Court of Appeals have previously recogﬁized a legislative intent that
the plaintiff exhaust administrative remedies. In Rains, the plaintiff sued for
damage caused by the overflow of a creek on his property after the State had
denied his application for a permit to re-channel the creek. Rains, 89 Wn.2d
at 741 — 42. The plaintiff never demanded a hearing that was available under
the Administrative.Procedures Act (APA). Id. at 742. This Court affirmed
dismissal of the claim based on the legislative intent as reflected by the APA

and RCW 4.92.090°%:

$ RCW 4.92.090 provides, “The State of Washington, whether acting in its
governmental or proprietary capacity, shall be liable for damages arising out of its
tortious conduct to the same extent as if were a private person or corporation.” In Rains,
because this Court affirmed based on the plaintiff's failure to exhaust, it did not reach the
issue of whether a license or permitting decision was a non-actionable discretionary act.

11



[W]e hold it to be the policy of this state that the
administrative procedures for a hearing must be invoked or
attempted to be invoked before liability in tort may be
charged to the state for failure to issue a license or permit. ....

We find rationale for such policy determination in the fact
that the legislature set up the procedure between agencies and
applicants. Such legislative scheme for an administrative
hearing implies that any other remedy is precluded, absent
such hearing, ....

Id. at 743 - 44; See also Reninger, 79 Wn. App. 631 — 32 (holding that Civil
Service Act’s extensive remedial scheme evidenced legislative intent that
administrative remedies be exhausted before State employee could seek tort
relief against State in Superior Court).

This Court should similarly hold that Legislature intended that
pharmacists use administrative procedures prior to seeking tort remedies
against the Board or its employees. The Uniform Disciplinary Act (UDAY’,
which governed the adjudication of Jones’ license suspension, provides:

It is the intent of the legislature to strengthen and consolidate

disciplinary and licensure procedures for the licensed health

and health-related professions and businesses by providing a

uniform disciplinary act with standardized procedures for the

licensure of health care professionals and the enforcement of

laws the purpose of which is to assure the public of the

adequacy of professional competence and conduct in the
healing arts.

Rains, 89 Wn.2d at 743 (citing Evangelical United Brethren Church v. State, 67 Wn.2d
246, 407 P.2d 440 (1965)).

? Some portions of the UDA have been amended since 1999. A copy of the
provisions of the UDA that were in effect in 1999 is attached as Appendix D.

12



RCW 18.130.010. The UDA incorporates the hearing procedures of the
APA and provides a vehicle and forum created specifically to resolve
complaints related to the licensure of health care professionals quickly and
inexpensively. The UDA permits the Board to resolve disciplinary action
either by entering an order following a hearing or, as here, entering an
order after the parties reach a stipulation. RCW 18.130.160. However,
the UDA specifically provides that whenever the Board enters an order
finding unprofessional conduct and imposing disciplinary sanctions, the
license holder must assume all costs of complying with the order:

All costs associated with compliance with orders issﬁed

under this section are the obligation of the license holder or

applicant.
RCW 18.130.160.

A pharmacist may appeal an order by the Board to the Superior
Court by filing a Petition for Review within thirty days. RCW 18.64.200;
RCW 34.05.542. In an APA review proceeding, the Superior Court is
authorized to both overturn the agency’s action and to award damages,
compensatioﬁ, or ancillary relief to the extent expressly authorized by
another provision of the law. RCW 34.05.574.

This Court should follow the reasoning of Rains and Reninger and

hold that the UDA’s extensive framework reflects a legislative intent that

pharmacists must exhaust the Board’s administrative remedies before

13



seeking other remedies in court. Jones’ state law tort claims all stem from
the suspension of his professional licenses, and the hearing process
established by the UDA could have afforded him timely and effective
relief. Furthermore, in RCW 18.130.160 the Legislature specifically
requires that pharmacists bear all costs associated with complying with
any Board order imposing disciplinary sanctions. Thus, when disciplinary
sanctions were imposed, Jones’ only recourse was to appeal the order to
the Superior Court in accordance with RCW 18.64.200, where he could
seek reversal of the Board’s order and, had he prevailed, any other relief
authorized by law. Jones cannot now seek to recoup the costs of
compliance with the order by asserting tort claims in this collateral
lawsuit. His stipulation to the suspensions and failure to exhaust the
Board’s administrative remedies bars his state law tort claims.

2. Exhaustion of the Board’s Remedies Was Not Futile

In the Court of Appeals, Jones argued that the exhaustion doctrine
should not bar his claims, because doing so would have been futile.. In
rare cases, futility will excuse the exhaustion requirement. Orion Corp. v.
State, 103 Wn.2d 441, 458, 693 P.2d 1369 (1985). “The futility exception
to the exhaustion doctrine is premised upon the rationale that courts will
not require vain and useless acts.” Id. Even remedies thought by the

plaintiff to be unavailing should be pursued. Dils, 51 Wn. App. at 219.

14



Chiefly, Jones’ argument is based on the delay he experienced in securing
a hearing before the Board and his personal financial situation. However,
as the Court of Appeals noted, the delay Jones complains of was caused
not by the Board, but by Jones’ own waiver of his right to a prompt
hearing. Jones v. State, 140 Wn. App. 476, 497, 166 P.3d 1219 (2007).
According to Jones, “By November, 1999, [he] had lost the business.” CP
217. Had Jones demanded a prompt hearing, it would have occurred in
early Séptember, 1999. Had Jones successfully challenged the Board’s
suspension at such a prompt hearing, his licenses could have been restored
and he could have avoided his damages. Having chosen to waive his right
to a prompt hearing and sidestep the Board’s extensive process, Jones
should not now be heard to claim that this process was futile.

3. This Case is Distinguishable from City of Seattle v.
Blume

In City of Seattle v. Blume, 134 Wn.2d 243, 947 P.2d 223 (1997), this
Court rejected the doctrine known as the independent business judgment
rule, under which the Court had previously held that a plaintiff's failure to
exhaust legal remedies negates the causation element in a damages claim.
Id. at 252. The Court was concerned that the rule discouraged settlement,
particularly where the tortfeasor may have the means to draw out litigation.

Id. at 259. As this Court noted, the independent business judgment rule was

15



first formulated in King v. City of Seattle, 84 Wn.2d 239, 525 P.2d 228
(1974), as a defense to a cause of action for tortious interference created for
persons to whom municipalities wrongfully denied land use épplications.
Blume, 134 Wn.2d at 252 — 54. While the majority in Blume did not
completely overrule King as urged by Justice Talmadge in his dissenting
opinion, it eliminated the independent judgment defense and held that the
City’s liability for the Blumes’ injuries had to be detenﬁined according to
traditional prinéiples of proximate causation. Id. at 252.

This .case 1S distillguishab]e. In Blume, the Blumes withdrew their
land use application after the City delayed its decision on their application
for over 5 years and 4 months and caused them to expend in excess of one
million dollars. Id. at 225. Here, Jones had an absolute right to a prompt
hearing within twenty days of the summary suspension of his licenses.
Furthermore, holding Jones to the stipulated order he agreed to will not
discourage setﬂement Rather, allowing Jones to proceed with his tort claims
will circumvent and undermine the stipulated administrative settlement and |
Jones’ agreement to assume all costs of complying with the Board’s order,
which is mandated by RCW 18.130.160. Given that Jones had the option of
pursuing a timely administrative remedy and that the settlement of his
disciplinary action contemplated the damages he now seeks, the policies

underlying the Blume decision are not implicated here.

16



4. Because Jones Failed to Exhaust Administrative
Remedies, He Cannot Establish Proximate Causation

While this Court abrogated the independent business judgment rule
in Blume, it took care to note:

We are not saying, as a matter of law, that a person’s own

conduct may not be the sole cause of his or her injuries, thus

breaking the chain of causation. The court must decide based

on traditional principles of proximate causation whether or

not a defendant was the cause of the injuries suffered and

whether the duty to mitigate was met.
Id. at 260. Here, the Court of Appeals’ decision should also be affirmed
based on such traditional principles of proximate causation. Proximate cause
consists of legal causation and cause in fact. Hartley v. State, 103 Wn.2d
768, 777, 698 P.2d 77 (1985). Thus, in Laymon the Department of Natural
Resources issued a stop Work order requiring the plaintiff, Laymon, to
cease logging on his property, because a bald eagle’s nest had been
reported nearby. Id. at 522. The order could have been challenged by
Laymon if he had filed a timely appeal with the Forest Practices Appeals
Board. Id. 522-23. Citing Blume in its analysis, the Court of Appeals
upheld dismissal of Laymon’s tort lawsuit based on his failure to exhaust
administrative remedies. Laymon, 99 Wn. App. at 525 —28.

Similarly, here Jones failed to avail himself of the administrative

hearing that was specifically designed to address his license suspensions.

Had Jones demanded a prompt hearing, the Board would have been

17



required to provide him with one within twenty (20) days of its summary
action. WAC 246-11-340. Jones waived his opportunities for both a
prompt hearing and a regularly scheduled hearing. Indeed, Jones not only
waived his opportunity to a hearing, he ultimately agreed to the five-year
suspension imposed by the Board in the stipulated order. Allowing Jones
to proceed with a tort lawsuit in these circumstances would completely
undermine the administrative process and defy RCW 18.130.160, which
requires that a pharmacist Subject 'to an order imposing disciplinary
sanctions bear all costs associated with complying with the order. In
Rains, this Court held that where the plaintiff failed to comply with the
Legislature’s intent that the APA’s administrative remedies be exhausted,
as a matter of policy the State had no tort liability. Rains, 89 Wn.2d at
744. Here, the C(;u11 should again find a lack of causation based on the
Legislature’s intent and Jones’ stipulation.

Moreover, under the doctrine of superseding cause, a defendant’s
conduct is a proximate cause of the plaintiff’s injury only if such conduct is
unbroken by any new, independent act of a third péﬂy that breaks the chain
of causation. Schooley v. Pinch’s Deli Market, Inc., 134 Wn.2d 468, 4832,
951 P.2d 749 (1998). Numerous superseding, intervening acts, which are
associated with Jones’ failure to completely exhaust the Board’s remedies,

interrupt the causal chain between any conduct by the investigators and any

18



damages claimed by Jones. Specifically, independent acts by the Pharmacy
Board, a quasi-judicial entity that is immune to liability', and acts by Jones
himself severed this causal chain.

Jones’ own decisions are the sole p;oximate cause of any damages he
sustained. Jones waived the available prompt hearing and later entered into a
stipulation, agreeing to entry of an order imposing a five-year suspension
and assuming all costs associated with complying with the order. As a
matter of law, these acts were the sole cause of his damages.

The Board’s independent decisions regarding Jones’ licenses are also
superseding, intervening acts that sever the causal chain. Jones filed a
motion to stay the summary suspension, but a three-member panel of the
Board — a quasi-judicial entity entitled to absolute immunity — denied the
motion on September 7, 1999. Later, Jones en;tered into a stipulation, which
the Board accepted when it signed the final order imposing the five-year
suspension. Where a judicial or quasi-judicial entity makes an independent

decision based on complete information, the decision is a superseding,

19 In his opposition to the State’s summary judgment motion, Jones conceded
that the Board and its members were entitled to quasi-judicial immunity. CP 195. The
Board is also entitled to immunity conferred by statute. RCW 18.64.005 (9) provides that
the Pharmacy Board and its members are immune, collectively and individually, to any
action based on Board disciplinary proceedings or other official Board acts. RCW
18.130.300 also provides, “The secretary, members of boards or commissions, or
individuals acting on their behalf are immune from suit in any action, civil or criminal,
based on any disciplinary proceedings or other official acts performed in the course of
their duties.” The State argued in its summary judgment motion that all defendants were
entitled to immunity under these statutes. CP 448 — 49.

19



intervening act severing the causal chain. See, e.g., Tyner v. Dept. of Social
and Health Services, 141 Wn.2d 68, 88, 1 P.3d 1148 (2000); Bishop v.
Miche, 137 Wn.2d 518, 531 — 32, 937 P.2d 465 (1999); Petcu v. State, 121
Wn. App. 36, 59 — 60, 86 P.3d 1234 (2004); West Coast, Inc. v. Snohomish
County, 112 Wn. App. 200, 215, 48 P.3d 997 (2002). The Board’s order
denying Jones’ motion to stay the summary suspension and its final order
were entered only after the Board considered all material information,
including that submitted by Jones. Because these decisions were
independent'’, they broke the causal chain between Jones’ damages and any
coﬁduct by the investigators.
III. CONCLUSION

For all the forgoing reasons, the Court of Appeals should be
~ affirmed. |
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this .2 /# day of October, 2008.

ROBERT M. MCKENNA
Attorney General

HN R. NICHOI:SON; WSBA #30499
Assistant Attorney General

Attomeys for Respondents

"' Even when a stipulation is submitted to the Board, the Board may reject the
stipulation. The “procedural stipulations™ section of the agreed order signed by Jones
expressly contemplated the possibility that the Board could reject the agreed order.
CP 414 (Paragraphs 1.9 - 1.11).
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I certify under penalty of perjury in accordance W1th the ‘Ia\vs o
——

T ————

the preceding Respondent’s Supplemental Brief to be filed by Legal
Messenger in the Supreme Court of Washington at the following address:

Supreme Court of Washington
415 12™ Avenue SW
Olympia, WA 98504

And, that I arranged for a copy of the preceding Respondent’s

Supplemental Brief to be served on appellant’s counsel at the following

address by legal messenger:

D. Murphy Evans
Brownlie Evans Wolf & Lee LLP

230 E. Champion St.
Bellingham, WA 98225 4548

DATED this g day of October, 2008, at Seattle, WA.
Vatarie Fvched

VALERIE TUCKER
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Appendix A

August 27, 1999 Answer to Statement of Charges



Pl

" FILED : (;-Z«)y > arns
AUG 2 7 1999
Adjudicativa Clerk STATE OF WASIUNGION
Office DEFARTMENT OF HEALTH

BOASW OF PUARMACY

In the Matter of the Liceuse 1o Practce )} Dockel No. 99-08-A-1016P51
Phanuacy of )
) Docket No. 99-08-A-1017CT
MICILAEL S. JONES, R.Ph., )
Licenre No. 10993, ) .
) ANSWER TO STATEMENT OF
In thic Matter of the Clactnacy Location ) CHARGES AND REQUEST FOR
Liccusc of ) PROMPT HEARING-OR
) SETILEMENT AND REGULARLY
‘The Mcdxclnc Shoppe Plinrmacy, ) SCHEDULED HEARING
License No. 55751, ) :
)
Respondents. )
S )
TO:  Michael S. Jones, RFh ‘Correct Name:

17330 26 Ave SE
Bothell WA 98012-6548
(425) 402-7960
and

) Medicine Shoppe lemumy
9430 State Ave
Marysville IPA 98270

Courect Address:

Cowroct Phivge:

N INSTRUCTIONS: This form may be used to answer the Smaneut of Charges and
mqucs( a prownpt hearing und/or a :culcmau and regulady schodulod hmin& Cormrect your
aamne, address and. phonc number above, u'nccma:y and ented your suswers below and slgn sod .
date this form. Return it to:

Adjudlcauvo Clerk Office
. 1107 Bastside Stroet
PO Box 47879

. ANSWER TO ETATENANT OF GUARD CHARGES AND T : -
- REQUEST FOR PROMPT (LEARING OK SETTLEMENT
AND RBUULARLY SQUEDULED UEARING- rAGE 1 °

—_— 04132222 : e
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I will filc a motion (o contest ¢ sunumary action. I understand that by doing so !

waive my oppor(uniiy {o a prompt hearing. hat rot ny right to an epadited hearing.

NQYE: IF YOU SELECT T1LS OPTION, YOUR MOTION MUST BE
RECELVED BY THL ADJUDICATIVE CLLR.K OFFICEBY Auguu 27, 1999,
I request a prowpt hearing. The prowpt hearing is scheduled for September 10,
1999. 1 understand that | (or my altomey) will be required {o participate ig al}
stages of the adjudicut_ivc procecding in sccordance with chapter 246-11 WAC.
NOTE: [F YOU SELECT THIS OPTION, THIS FORM MUST BE RECEIVED
BY TIIE ADJUDICATIVE CLERK OFFICE BY August 27, 1999,

I waive n;y opportusity for 2 prompt hicaring; however, I r:qucs( an opportunity
for seulq:nent and a rcgularly scheduled hearing oo the allegations in the
Statement of Charges if setlement is not rcached. 1 understand that a scheduling
order will be issued ;md that I (or my attorucy) will be required (o participate in all
stages of the adjudicative proceeding in accordance with chapter 246-11 WAC.

1 waive my oppottuulty for & prompt hcanng and I wiive my opportunity for
sctticmcnt and a t':gnlar]y schoduled hicaring. 1am mclosmg my wrilten
statemient nndlor any matedials I wisti (o have the Board consider in disposition of

the casc.,

- Section 2: REPRESENTATION

INSTRUCTIONS: Mark tho sppropriate response and provide corroot information:

U will be represented by an attorney who must file a notice of appearance. His/her

name, addrees and phone number are:

"ANSWER 10 STATEMENT OF CHARGQES AND
REQUEST FOR FROMPT HHARING OR SETTLEMENT
ANO REGULARLY SCHEDULED IEARING- FAGE 3 OF 3

04132223
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.
.

. W,

Notue L GERNAKL SAUMAN

Addrcss: o _-,_.__'_' o‘.g:‘....h-.‘ ’ -
L Beanle, Weedington 90104

FPhonc: _(206)464-1860.

1 will not be represented by an atlomcey.

Scction 3: RESPONSE 10 ALLEGATIONS

INSTRUCTIONS: Indicate below whethier you admit, deny or do not contest each of the

alleged facts and allcged violations contained in the numbered paragraphs in the Statement of

Charges. Chicck ouc response for cach numbered paragraph.

Pﬁmgrapb Number Admit | Deoy

Do Not
Countest

.

|

12

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.6

1.7

18

VI VIR VIR VI (VR VRS 19O IV

—=x==g

T ]

1.82
X

183

184 oo mﬁ;]&g

X
83 x

186

ANSWER 10 $1ATEMENT OF GHARGES AND

REQUEST FOR PROMPT HEARING OR SETTLEMBNT
AND REGULARLY SCHEDULED HEARING- PAGB 4 OF 4

:04132224
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TigF T T N
19 ] X _—
1.10
e e X
“ 1,701 T
1102 x
N — FEING. ORIECTED AT THE TIME
1.103 .
1104 - X
Bl et 08
11005
X KOHEIND |
Ti0s .
1.10.7
. x__J_
1.10.8 N
1.109 - N
X X OEIND SrasenT
1.10.10
1.10.11 B
171012 .
— 111 x | )
AT THE TD'E
1.12 x
1.12.1 )
1122
1123 .
1.12.4
1.125 N N
1126 o 1. .
R 8 ¥ | x
i12.8 ] x
1.12,9 1 %
1.3 X
2.1

ANSWOR TO STATEMENT OF CHARGES AND

REQUEST FOH{ FROMPT HEARING OR SETTLEMENT

AND REGUIARLY SCIIEDULED HEARING- PAGES OF §

04132225
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sty

2.2

23

24

e

i
i

2.3

|
{
~

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

211

212

1

2.13

2.14

" 215

2.16

R ST I S T J EE VR (VI VR VI 0

o217

i
L

2.18

2.19

2.21

227

223

2.24

238

I O E I I LTI FVR PV PV PV

D vt Dl -

ANSWER T0O STATEMENT OF CHARGES AND .
REQUEST POR PROMPIMT HEARING OR SETTLEMENT

AND REGULARLY SOIEDULED HEARING- FAGE 6§ OF 6

04332226
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INSTRUCTIONS: Murk the appropriate response:

D 1 Lave attached a swom statemcent io my defense or in mitigstion of charges.

(]  1haveuot sttached a swom statenicut.

N . Scction 4: WEKPRE'I'ER_REQUEST

INSIRUCTIONS: Completc the appropriate infounation if you request an interpreter
because of a pmuzr) lagguage other than Baglish aaor because of a biearing or specch
impuirment. If y.ou later dctermine that an intcpreter will be necessary, you must notify the
;;anlcs listed ips the Notice of Opportunity for Settlement and Hcaring. Costs for an intcrpreter
will be paid pursuant to WAC 246-11-200.
(O  Irequestthat s qualificd intecpreter be eppointed to interpret for me or for ay

witnness(es). My (or my witness(es)”) primary ianguagc is___ .
(R 1 request that a qualificd inlcrpr;la be appointed to interpret for uc or for my

witness(es). My (or aty witness(es)") hearing or speoch impaiegicat requircs an

interpreter able to communicate in the following language: .
Section 5: PROCEDURAL RIGUTS '
Pursvant lo chapter 34.05 RCW, you have the right lo dcmznd 8 rcgularly scheduled
hearing, to defend against the alfcgations In the Statement of (lmrges. You also have the nght to
decmand a prompt bearing (o contést the Smemenlot Charges and summaty actlon of your

liccoses. You have the nglu to bc represcuted by a1 sttomey at your own expcnsc, to subpocna

witnessces or (le production of bookx or documcu(s. and (o otherwlco defend against the summary |

order and the allcgations in the Statement of Chrges. The Board has adbpted procedural nﬂ;x

"ANSWER TO STATEMENT OF CHAROES AND
REQUEST FOR PROMPT HIEARING OR SETTLEMENT

AND REQULARLY SCHEDULED HEARING- PAGE 7 OF 7

04132227

i e
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for the exercisc of ticse rights and for the conduct of any adjudicative proceeding you request.

] The nules arc contained in chapter 246. WAC.

} DATED u\is‘g_z:z_‘:day of

. 1999,

Sign here: W@ﬂw
CHAEL S. JONES

Rcspoudcnlb %ﬁ{b

FOR INTEXNAL USE ONLV. INTERNAL TRACKING NUMNERS . ) - o

PHOI0001, 99040001, 0DOI0004, #9030003, 95070071

4
&
1
4
§
4
———— .
4
3
: !
-4
- . ANSWER TO STATEMENT OF CILARGES AND .
REQUUST FOR PROMIM HBARING OR SETTLEMENT o
AND REGULARLY SCHEDULED HEARING- PAGE & OF 8 d
! §

c et 04132228
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Appendix B

September 7, 1999 Order on Motion to Modify Ex
Parte Order of Summary Action



A
)
!
'

N

O

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
BOARD OF PHARMACY
In the Matter of the License to Practice )
as a Pharmacist of: ) Docket No. 98-08-A-1016PH
) Docket No. 99-08-A-1017CF
MICHAEL S. JONES, R.Ph., )
License No. 10993, )
) ORDER ON MOTION TO MODIFY
In the Matter of Phamacy Location ) . EX PARTE ORDER OF SUMMARY
License of: ) ACTION )
) .
The Medicine Shoppe Phammacy, )
License No. 55751 ) _
)
Respondents. )
)

This matter came before Health Law Judge Arthur E. DeBusschere, Presiding
Officer for the Board of F3harmacy (the Board), on a Motion to Modify Ex Parte Order of

Summary Action, brought by the Respondent, Michael S. Jones, R.Ph., by and through

his counsel, W. Bemard Bauman, Attomey at Law. Lori Lebon Salo, Assistant Atto}ney

General, represents the Departmént of Health (the Department). The Board members

decidirig this motion were Sharmon Sellers, Public Member; Donna Docktor, R.Ph.; and

CA Leon Alzola, R.Ph., Panel Chair. —_

The Board having reviewed the motion and the documents submitted in support .
of this motion, hereby enters the following: |
. PROCEDURAL HISTORY
1.1 On August 17, 1999, the following dt;ctmzents were served upon the
Respondent: (1) Statement of Charges; (2) Notice and Opportunity for Prompt Hearing,
Regularly Scheduled Hearing or Settlement; (3) Answer to Statement of Qhamés and

ORDER ON MOTION TO MODIFY )
EX PARTE ORDER OF SUMMARY ACTION -Page 1 ) OR]G!NAL

04132101
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e .

. Request for Prompt Hearing or Settlement and Regularly Scheduled Heanng, and (4)

Ex Parte Order of Summary Action. In the Ex Parte Order of Summary Actlon the
Board ordered that the Respondent's license 1o practice as a pharmacist in the state of'
Washington be summarily suspended. The Board also orderéd that the license issued
to Respondent Medicine Shoppe Pharmacy, located at 9430 State Street in Marysvflle,
Washington, to operate as a phammacy be summarily suspended

12  OnAugust 17, 1898, the Respondent filed an Answer to Statement of
Charges. In his Answer, the Respondent indicated that he would file a motion to
contest lhe summary action. /

1.3 On August 30, 1999, tne Respondent filed a Motion to Modify Ex Parte
Order of Summary Action and a Declaration of Bernard Bauman in Support of his
Motion. Also filed was a Declaration of Michael Jones, R.Ph,

. 14  On September 1, 1999, the Department filed a Réspons;e to'Respondent's
Motion to Modify Order of Summary Action and attached Department's Exhibits 1-5.

1.5 On September 2, 1999, the Respondent ﬁled a Decla.tation of Bemard
Bauman in Reply to Department's Response, which was also s:gned by the ‘
Respondent. Attached were Respondent's Exhibits 1-6. .

1.6 On September 2, 1999, the Presiding Officer conducted a telephone
conference w:th the partles. In regards to his motion to modify, the Respondent ebded

not to present oral argument on his motion fo modify on September 10, 1999. Instead,

the Respondent requested to have the Board conskder his Motion to Modify as soonas

a meeting time could be arranged. The Presliding Officer informed the Respondent that

ORDER ON MOTION TO MODIFY ‘ Ce el

EX PARTE ORDER OF SUMMARY ACTION - Page 2 o
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if he receév_ed a ded;ion to his disfavor, he may make a motion to have an expedited
hearing, but that he has waived his right to a prompt hearing, which was scheduled for
September 10, 1999,

1.7 On September 3, 1999, the Presiding Officer conducted a second
telephone conference with the parties. The Presiding Officer heard oral argument on
the issue of timeliness. The Presiding Officer ruled that the Motion to Modify was timely
filed. The Respondent had filed his Answer to Statement of Charges on August 27,
1999, and timely stated that he would be filing a Motion to Modify. Further, the
Reépondent had not requested a prompt hearing within 10 days of service, which was
required under the rules, WAC 246-1 1-340(3). Next, the Presiding Officer ruled on the
Department's objections to Respondent's Exhibits No. 1, No. 2 and No. 6, which were
attéched to Respondent's Reply Declaration, During a second prehearing conference
oo.nducted on September 3, 1999, the Presiding Officer provided datiﬁgtion on how
the corrected exhibits should be filed.

1.8 On September 7, 1999, the Respondent filed corrections t;: Respondent's
Exhibit No. 2 and No. 6, and filed an additional exhibit, Responderlt;s;gmibit No. 7,
which was a declaration by W. Bemard Bauman.

1.9 On Septembér 7, 1889, the Board met to consider the Respondent's

Motion to Modify Ex i’arte Order of Summary Action.

- Il. FINDINGS ON RESPONDENT'S MOTION fO MODIFY
The Respondent moved for an order modifying the Ex-Parte Order of Summary
Action and staying the summary suspension of the licenses issued to Respondent and

ORDER ON MOTION TO MODIFY )
EX PARTE ORDER OF SUMMARY ACTION - Page 3
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Medicine Shoppe, located at 8430 State Street in Marysville, Washington. The
Respondent requested that both licenses be reinstated. The Board considered the
documents filed by the, Respondent and reviewed the filed exhibits. The Board also
considered the Department's arguments and the attached exhibits. The Board finds
that the arguments and evidence provided by the Respondent inadequately addressed
the existence of immediate danger to the public health, séfety and welfare. The
Respondent had oommitted serious violations of the pharmacy laws by operating the
pharmacy bel;)w the standard of care. The Board could not be assured by the .
Respondent's assertions that he has comrected the problems and that he will remain in
compliance. The- Respondent has a history of committing violations of the pharmacy
law, corre&iﬁg the violations, bﬁt then violating the laws again. The Board finds that
the concems for th_e protectio.n of the public outweigh the Respondent‘s: assertions that

the violations have been corrected.

{Il. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The Board has authority to take emergency adjudicative action to address an
immediate danger to the pubfic health, safety, or welfare. RCW 34.05.422(4),
RCW 34.05.479, RCW 18.130.050(7); and WAC 246-11-300. In this case, the Board
considered the Respondgnt’s arguments to modify the Ex Parte Order of Summary
Action. The Board affirms that the existence of immediate danger to the public health,
safety, or welfare remains. The Respondent's request to modify the Ex Parte Order of
Summary Action did not adequately address the danger to the public health, safety or
welfare. The Ex Parte Order of Summary Action, which was ordered on August 17,

ORDER ON MOTION TO MODIFY
EX PARTE ORDER OF SUMMARY ACTION - Page 4

04132104
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1989, is necessary to address this danger {o the public and is the least restrictive action
} justified by the danger posed. The Respondent's Motion to Modify Ex Parte Order of

Summary Action should be denied.

IV. ORDER
Based upon the above, the Board hereby ORDERS that the Respondent's

Motion o Medify Ex-Parte Order of Summary Action in this matter is DENIED.

_ HA
DATED THIS _J_ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 1999,

BOARD OF PHARMAGY -

Stpespn (o 9—

- SHARRON SELLERS, Public Member, for
CA. LEON ALZOLA, R.Ph., Panel Chal

o

'ORDER ON MOTION TO MODIFY -
J EX PARTE ORDER OF SUMMARY'ACTION - Page 5
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Appendix C

Stipulated Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and
Agreed Order



State of Washington
Departmeat of Health
Board of Pharmacy
In the Matter of the License to Practice )
Pharmacy of: )
) DocketNo. 99-08-A-1016PH
MICHAEL S. JONES, R.Ph, )
License No. 10993 ) Dockct No. 99-08-A-1017CF
)
In the Matter of the Pharmacy Location ) STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
Licenseof: ) CONCLUSIONSOF LAW AND
’ ) AGREEDORDER
The Medicine ShOppc Pharmacy, ) -
LicenseNo. 5575 1, )
)
)
Respondents. )

°

The State of Washington Board of Pharmacy, by and through David M. Hankins, )
Assistant Au&ney General Prosecutor and Michael S. Jones, R.Ph., represented by W. Bernard
Bauman stipulate anci agree (o the follovging: -

Section 1: Procedural Stipulations

1.1 Mld:acl S. Jones, Rmpondcnt, wasxssucdalxwuscto pracnccpharmacymlhc
state of Washmgwn in June 1980. Respondent’s license to practice pharmacy in the state of
Washmgmncxpms on October24, 1999,

12 OnOctobchS l9991beBomdofPharmacylsawdanAmmdedStnwmmtof
Charges against Respondent. . .

13 The Statement of Charges alleges that Respondeat violated RCW 18.64:160(5);
-165@2), 245, 246,270, 18.130.18%(1), (4), 6), (7), (12), (13), 69.04.450, 490, 510, 69.41.03{6.

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT, . "ORIGINAL
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND AGREED ORDER - PAGE 1 i

- - ' 04131830
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-042, 050, 69.50.30¢, -308(d)(e),.401(1)d); WAC 246-863-095(f),-110, 246-869-100(1)(2)(3).(0).
-130,-150, -160(4X(5),-190, -210, -230, 246-875-001,-020, -040, 246~901-080(2),-090, 0100(3).. i

1.4 Respondent understands that the State is prepared to ;_)roce.cd to a hearing on the
allegations in the Statement of Charges.

I.5  Respondent understands that he has the right to defend himself _égainsl the

allegations in the Statement of Charges by presenting evidence at a hearing,

16 Respondent wnderstands that, should the State prove at a hearing the allegations in
the Statement of Charges, the Board of Pharmacy has the power and authon't); to impose
sanctions pursuant to RCW 18.130.160). ' N

17 R&spor;dcnt and the Board of Pharmacy agree to expedite the resolution of this
matter by means of this Stipulated F. indings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Agreed Order
(Agreed Order). - .

1.8 Respondent waivesthe opportumty for a hearing on the Statement of Chaxgts
contingent upon signature and acceptance of this Agreed Order by the Board of Pharmacy.

. 1.9 ThzsAgxderdcr:snotbmdmg unless and until ltxssxgncdandaeocpted bylhe
Board of Pharmacy., _
110 smma&wwabcsi@od;ndmp@ditvﬁy_p&subjammc.

reporting roquirements of RCW 18.130.1 10, Section 1128E of the Social Sccurity Act, and any

applicable interstate/national reporting requirements.
L.11 ShoulddxisAgmededcrbelg'eued,RSpondmtmivwanyobjécﬁmmihé
pamapauonatbwmgofauorsomcoftbeBomdmmbuswhohemdthcAgmedOIda

pmscamuon.

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT, - . .

cmaxmomoeuw:mnmonm-mmz . - -

‘e
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Section 2: Stipulated Facts

While Respondent does not admit to the following conduct, Respondent acknowledges
that the evidence is sufficient 1o justify the following findings:

2.1 Respondent Medicine Shoppe Pharmacy located at 9430 State Avenue, Marysvilie,
Washington was issued a location license o operaic as a pharmacy in the staie of Washington in.
October 1996. The current location license expires on June 1, 2000.

22 .Rcspondenl Michael Jones 'is the ow;zer, responsible manager, and only
pharmacist listed as working at the Medicine Shoppe in Marysville, Washijxgton.

23 On March 1, 1994, a Statement of Charges was issued against Respondent
Michael Jones related to a prescription filling emor while Respondent was working as a

pharmacist at Safeway Pharmacy # 497 in Seattle, Washington

24 Onluly 6, 1994, the Board entered a Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and .

Order placing Respondent’s license to practice phannaéy in the state of Washington on probation -

for a period of one ycar' and imposing certain terms and conditions. One of the conditions

imposed on Respondent was a requirement that he create and submit a plan 1o avoid violations of

pharmacy law related to the filling of prescriptions.

25  On December 7, 1995, Respondent’s license to practico-pharmacy in the state of
Washington was ﬁtlly reinstated.

26 In approximatcly October 1996, Respondent Jones purchased and operated The
Medicine Shoppe in Marysville, Washington.

27 On December 17, 1998, RmpondthedxcmcShoppcmocwedaﬁdmg

inspection grade of 79 from Board of Phanmacy Investigator Wené while conducting a routine
inspection of the pharmacy. An inspection score of 90-100 is classified as a passing pharmacy

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
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inspection score, Anmspea!onscomoNO-shsdmﬁedasacondiuomlphmmaqmspcmon :

$corc An inspection score 0f 0-79 is classified as an unsatisfactory pharmacy inspection. score,
At that time, Respondent Michael Jones was the owner, responsible managcr and only
phammacist listed as working at the Medlqne Shoppe in Marysville, Washington. The violations -
included but were not limited to:

2.7.1 Failing 10 obtain chronic conditions on patients of the pharmacy;

272 Dispensing the ma;:o:ity of prescriptions in non child-resistant containers without
a written request from cither the patieat or the prescriber;

2.73 Various required records required by state and federal law werc cither inaccurate,

tncomplete or not avmlablc

2.74 There was a box of filled prescription containers, many uniabeled, on the floor of
the pharmacy, .
275 Investigator Weae discovered a prescription filling error in the will call arca. A

ptmmpuon fo was incorrectly filled mﬂ.

276 Manyoflhcpmzpuommd:cmﬂeallmhadlabdedoqmmondam
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inaccurate. incomplete or missing records rcquiwd_ by state or federal law. At tha time,
Respondent Michacl Jones was the owner, responsible manager, and only phammacist listed as
working at the Medicine Shoppe in Marysville, Washington.

2.9 On July 12, 1999: Board of_' Pharmacy Investigators Wene and Jeppesen
conducted a routinc inspection of the Medicine Shoppe Phanmacy in Marysville. At that time,
Respondent Michael Jones. was the ownmer, responsible manager, and only pharmacist listed as
working at the Medicine Shoppe in Marysville, Washington. The pharmacy received an
extremely on failing grade of 48. At thax time the violations included but were not limited to:

29.1 Failing to obtain chronic conditions and allergics on pa:icms of the pharmacy.
Disease state management is coded in ICD-9 codes a;xd provides the information in coded form,
not readily readable by the Pharmacist.

' 292 Numerous (greater than 10) prescriptions were labeled with a different generic
product than indicated on the label or NDC Code. Several of !hog: prescriptions wcn:.dispmsed
in the presence of the Board of Pharmacy Invwﬁgz;lozs.

293 Dispensing the majority (in cxcess _of 90%) of prescriptions in non-child- ms.istant
containcrs without a written request from either the patient or the prescriber for noa ch_ildf

294  Thirty-cight (38) drug products were outdated. Of those, 18 drugs were legead o
coatrolled substances and 20 were OTC products.

295 Various xeoords required by fedetal law(DEA) were cither inaccurate, incomplete
or not available. DEA order forms and invoices could not be reconciled. proudent was unable
tplocazcscvualwqmmdDEAfomn. TbaewaspoormminﬁonofDEAinvmymds.

MTE)FDD!NOSWFACI‘ -
cona.us:ousoeuwmmom PAGES
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including non-sequential filing. Several DEA records did not include date and amount teceived
on DEA 222 forms,

2.9.6 DEA laventory incomplete, DEA inventory for Schedules 1i]-V was missing.

Respondent was unable to gencraie reports for Schedule IT drugs. The daily refill reports were

not signed, stored in various locations, out of sequence, with several months not focated.

29.7 Facts and Comparisons, the only reference source in the pharmacy, had not beeg
updated for at least nine (9) months. . )

2.9.8 Phannacy Assistant did not have a name badge and none had been ordered. No
Pharmacy Assistant certificate had been generated or signed. Modiﬁ:a'tions to the Pharmacy
Assistant Utilization Plan were in place without Board approval.

2.9.9 The prescription records were inaccurate, missing and poorly organized.
Examples include prescription.files with non-sequential order. Several prescriptions, both C-11
and other drugs were unaccounted for, Prescription files were kept with no o@dom
Respondent Jones was unable to locate files in a time!& manner.

2.9.10 Minimum procedures for utilization of the mﬁmt medication system were
insdoquate.

2.9.11 During the inspection, a patient returned a prescription_sa that Respondent Jones

could correct the instructions for use. The correction was made but no audit trail of the change

wasmed‘inthephanmcycompmu .
29.12 Thcphatmacywas geacaally disorganized and dirty. The phammsacy sink and
immdiammmmdhtyandudthummmdhtyfooddislnk -

'
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210 On July 13, 1999, Investigator Jeppesen retumed 10 the pharmacy 10 retrieve
documents promised by Respondent Jones. At that time Respondent Jones stated he could not
locate the documents. Respondent stated that his computer could generate the required reports but

. that he, (Respondent) did not know how to generate them. -

2.1 On#\hgust 10, 1999, Investigators Wene and Jeppesen returned to the Medicine
Shop_Pharmacy in Marysville, Washington, to conduct the re-inspection in relation t0 the July 12,
1999 failing score. This inspection again resulted in an cxtre;ncly low failing score of 56. At that
time, Respondent Michael Jones was x.hc owner, responsible manager, and_‘only pharmacist listed
as working at the Medicine Shoppe in Marysville, Washington. At that time the violations
incliuded but were not limited to:

2.11.1 Six prescriptions selected randomly in the will call area did not have allergy or
chronic conditions noted in the patient profile. The disease state - drug inleraction ficlds had
been turned off. Respondent Jones was unable to explain the purpose or the clinical significance
of the clinical interaction levels that appeared for drug interaction messages.

2.112 Three prescriptions selected randomly from the will call area were labeled with a
different generic pmduct than indicated on the label and/or NDC Code.

2.113 Forty-onc (41) prescriptions were located in the will call area~Of those, forty (40)
wmpuhédmmnchndmmmmmunommammchnd resistant container
was in a container supplied by the manufacturer.

2.11.4 Eleven !cg&xd or controlled substances on the shelf were beyond the
manufacturer’s expiration date.

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND AGREED ORDER - PAGE 7

04131836 .

419



n""—“".‘v_\

2115 Asin the July 12, 1999 inspection, various records required by federal law (DEA)
were cither inaccurate, incomplete or not aveilable. The invoices for the C 11 drugs were no(- filed
Separately. Several DEA records did not include date and amount reccived on DEA 222 forms.

2.i 1.6 DEA Inventory records incomplete. There was no signature on the C-II, C-Iff -
C-V inventorics. Requested records cou;d not be located.

2.11.7 Five prescriptions which had been filled and retumed to the stock area were
checked for accuracy of product on the label”and against comx:t NDC numbers.  All five
Ptmmpuons failed to comply thh state and/or federal law.

2.11.8 Minimum procedures for wutilization of the patient m—edication system were
inadequate. The pharmacy QS-1 system was not able to create an accurate and complete audit trail
for changes made 1o the prescrptionsafier filling including directions for use and drug dispensed.

2119 During the period August 4, 1999 through August 5, 1999, fony—eightpxmcripﬁons

Were processedin the pharmacy. Of those forty-eight prescriptions, tweaty-one did not bave a hard ‘

)( copy in the peescriptions.

212 R@oudqnhﬁchadS.JomopumcdtthedidncSBopp?thmacyhammw
bclowlhcsgandardofca:cforthcopaxﬁouofaphax;nacyandd:qdomplaoedthcgaﬁmtsof_'hﬁ
phammacy st serious risk of significant harm. —_

213 That on or about 4-1-99, mq:ondcntlcﬁlledaptmnpuouforpmhfor
-counoﬂedm memwmnmn

‘ - m Rq:ondaxthadtobamkm
. to the ww&hgm&um

420



it

214  That on or about 2-8-99, patient C was prescri
b).physician and phoned in 1o respondent’s pharmacy. The original prescription permitied
substitution, but did not permit refilis. Respondent failed to note in his phone prescription if
substitution was permitted. ‘ ‘

215 On <;r about 2-8-99, respondent filled the prescription for patient C wxﬂ_

~(@pondcnl without authorization from the physician refilled ~p(mipdon,

and misfilled and mislabeled the medication with an increasc in dosagc strength on 3-1-99 and on
sroowic N

216  Respondent failed o maintain the prescription hardcopy, fai;d 0 maintain accurate
records and/or altered or manipulated the computer records by:

216.1 On 5-7-99, the phaﬁnacy investigator obtained records from respondent’s |
pharmacy. Patient C's medication profile record indicate respondent filled the prescription for

—wlth  generic substitut QNN oo 2-8-99, 3-1-99 and 3.7.99, The

.meamd:hazmcqumavedmcmod;mmonww Respondeat’s diily audit
-log for2-8-99mdxcatshcﬁlledlhcptwaipﬁonwiﬂ-1h¢ investigator also -
mecivgdaptcviouscopyofrwpondem’sdaﬂyauditlogfor2-8-99whidxindicawsthatén2-8-9_9,

respondeat filled the modication itk NG

217 rmcn«ms.lmmanvobwammof‘
mmmamwawmmmwmm
2 refill of the medication. mmpﬁonuﬂbmmdonlyoncmﬁﬂ. Respondeat’s rocords
T mdicucﬂmborcﬁnedﬂx-m 1-8-99,2-1699, ms-uwmmm
umw«mnnmrummﬁmmwwum '
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218 That on or about 10-23-98 paticnt D hag respondent ill 4 prescription 2 |
1 . N

; : ~ The patient’s physician only prtsm_ Respondent’s
fecords indicate that he fiiled a prescription fo- N
He refilled me-on 11-19-98, 11-30-98, and 3-27.98. Respondent’s records

“indicate he aiso refilled m~ 11-19-98, 11-30-98, 12-5.98, 18.99, 2.16.99

. and 3-27-99. The patient indicated lha.ncvcr received my~ Respondens

failed to maintaip a hardcopy of the prescription a.nd filled & prescription without authorization
ﬁomthcphysnaanandlorbzllcd the state formcd:cauonﬂmapancutd:duouwuvc_
219 That on or about 2-15-99, ltspondcul filled a prescription for patient D for

h a controlled substance. Respondent’s medication profile

records for patient D show that respondent filled the prescription as

| , -1d also filled a prescription for“ Respondent filled and
: : refilled _mpuon without the physician"s authorizationon 2-1599,2-

i . 25-99and 3-22-99. Respondeat also refilled on 3-22-99, the patient's prescription fo
) —

had ‘ -Ihewmgator“msunablcloloeuxcabmdcopyoﬂheplmmonfo—'
L mmmmwmupmmmmm.wu
O
220 Monorabmubecanba!”&mmDobwwdtqnnduumdcm
Wmmmwmmwmmmwh
wawmw-mkmfawsw
- - - w . . . .. ' ‘ .
221 mwmmmsmamwﬁma;

mrm&pwmam+mmm
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222 That respondent misfilled patient F's prescription fo-vml.
instead o.s prescribed by the physician,

Section 3: Conclusious of Law

The State and Respondent agree to the entry of the following Conclusions of Law:

3.1 The Board of Pharmacy has jurisdiction over Respondent and over the subject
matter of lhls proceeding,

32 Theabove facts constitute unpmf;mional eonduc} in violation of RCW
18.64.160(5),.165(2), 245, -246,270, 18.130.180(1),(4), (6), (7). (12), (13),69.04.450, 490, 510,
69.41.030,.042, 050, 69.50.30¢, -308(d)X(c),.401(1)(d); WAC 246-863 -095(f),-110, 246-869-
100( 1)2Xa)-(c), -130,-150, - -160(4)(5),-190, -210, -230, 246-" 875-001,-020, -040, 246-901-
080(2),-090, -100(3).

33  For purposces of settlement, the state wi(ildraws allegation 1.15 in the amended
Statement of charges and the violations outlined in paragraph 230, »

34 Theabove violations are grounds for the imposition of sarictions under RCW
18.130.160. '

Section 4: Agreed Order

BasedontbcpleocdingsuptllaledFuasandCondusxonsof -Rfspondanagxwto

catry of the following Order: . )
41 mwmn@am&gs&@cwﬁﬁ@u@sﬂsl.

foratlenstﬁve(S)mﬁund:cddcofﬂﬂsuda: R@wmmdﬁmwm
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4.2 Thelicensc to practice pharmacy issued to Michacl S. Jones, shall be
SUSPENDED WITHOUT STAY effective from the date of August 17, 1999.

4.3 The tespondent is prohibited from functioning in a pharmacy or any other drug-
related employment during the respondent's suspension. The respondent will not make public
appearances representing himself as a pharmacist.

44 Respondent’s license to practice pharmacy shall be Suspended With Stay for at
least 5 years from the date of January 13, 2000, -

4.5 Respondent shall obey all federal, state and local faws and all administrative rules
governing the pracuoe of the profession in Washington.

4.6 Respondent shall assume ali costs of complying with this Order.

4.7 If Respondent violates any provision of this Order in any respccl,.lhe Board of
Pharmacy may take further action against Respondent's license,

48 Respondent shall inform the Board of Pharmacy, in waiting, of changes in his
resideatial addrcss, . ' . .

49  Inthe event respondent should feave Washington'to reside or to practice outside

thesm!c,‘mspondentmustnotifyinwﬁﬁngtthoardofPha:macjofthe date of departure and

“return. Periods of mdcncy or practice outside Washington will not apply to the reduction of

ihispmbaﬁonaxyormspmsionpaiod.
4.10 'lhctmpondentshallmbmﬂvmumnouﬁcanontotbeBomdofPhamcy

'addstodtothcl’togmmMamger ofanyanploymmtormdmccaddxmchangm. The

muﬁcanonshaumdlﬂcmeconmldcncwaddressandtdq&oncnmbcr The notification must
bcmademmmtwuny(ZO)daysoﬂhcdmngcmemploymanwn;idmaddxm

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
mmOFMWANDAORmom PAGE. 12
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4.11  The respondent shall submit periodic declarations under penalty of perjury stating

whether there has been compliance with all conditions of this Order. Failure 10 submit

‘information and/or to make true statements may subject the respondent to rcfcnal for prosecution

under RCW 9A.76.020 and/or RCW 9A.72.030.

4.12  The respondent shall advise any employer w_ho hires him or her, to function in the
capacity'of a health care practitioner, of thp terms of this Order imposed by the Board of
Pharmacy. The Respondent’s cmployer must submit written notification to the éoard‘indicating
he or-shc l\m; seen the Board's Order,

4.13  The respondent shall submit a quarterly declaration under penalty of perjury

stating whether there has been compliance with all conditions of this Otder The first report is

crf/ Qv
ai ﬁg I#J > and on the first day of& Ve .(1- o4 ’Zl and thereafter until

L . // unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Pharmacy.-

114 Respondent shall notify Board of Pharmacy of any employment in the health care.
field, including any changé in employment or practice status, prondeut shall, within tweaty _
(20) days of the effective date of this Order, or as soon thereafler as deemed by the Board of i
Pharmacy, submit 1o tthoardofPharmacyforlchoard ofPhaxmncy'sappmvaL ajob
description or description of practice and clinical privilege of respondent’s present practice or
position. Thercafter respondent shall submit a job description or description of practice and
clinical privilege of respondent's practice or position to the Board of Pharmacy for their approval
prior to making theco;ntcmphtcd change. o

415 Rcspondeutshallcawclhcmspoodmfs employer t6 submit quartedy

. pafomanccmpatsdhealymtbeBoudofthmacyonfounsxmwdcdbytheBomdof

Pharmacy, 'Ibcfn-stwporusdmg_o_cé.;,mdontheﬁmdayﬁu/// 0j |

.STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,

MNMOPMWANDAWORDR PAGE 13
AR e S W et s e gl fesed

04131842

425



AT
N

-

)

/ and thereafter. The respondent shall ensure that the respondent’s employer has been
given a copy of this Order and the employer understands the decision of the Board of Pharmacy
in this case. The respondent shall ensure that the employer makes reference to Board of
Pharmacy decision in the reports to the Board of Pharmacy.

4.16 The respondc!u is hereby placed on notice that it is the rcspon.sibiliiy of the
respondent to cnsure that all required reports are submitted to the Board of Pharmacy in a timely
manner. ) -

4.17  Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order or as soon thercafter as
deemed by thc Board of Pharmacy, respondent shall make an appointmient to undergo a
psychological evaluation by a psychologist designated by the Board of Pharmacy who shall
fumnish a report to the Board of Pharmacy according to the following protocol adopted by the
Board of Pharmacy: -

) Please perform a psychological examination to assess:

I Psychological diagnosis, if any. |

2 Tieatment recommendations, if any.

The evaluation should consist of the following components:

L. A completesocial, past medical, developmental and psychological history.

2 A review of this Agreed Order.

3. Any other physical examinations, psychological or laboratory studies decmed
necessary by the evaluator.,

The report of examination should discuss fully and with specificity the basis for
the diagnosis, if any, conclusions and recommendations made pursuant to items 1-3 in-the first

' paragraph above, ’!‘hclqaortofmmimﬁvon.sbo‘ddbcsanw:

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
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Board of Pharmacy
PO Box 47863
Olympia WA 98504-7863

A copy shall be provided to the Respondent.

4.18  Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this decision, or as soon thereafier
as deemed by the Board of Pharmacy, respondent shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy for its
prior approval, a program of remedial education, related to the violations found in the decision.
The exact r.mmbcr of hours and the specific content of the program shall be dclcrmined_ by the
Board of Pharmacy and shall not total less than twenty-five (25). This program shall be in
addition to the Continuing Education requirement for re-licensure. The Board of Pharmacy may
also require respondent to pass an examination related 1o the content of (h; program.

419 Respondent shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy for its prior approval,a
clinical education program related 10 the violations found in the decision. The exact number of
hours and the specific content of the program shall be determined by the Board of Pharmacy and
shall total not less than four (4) nor more than twenty (20) hours per week. R;spondcnl shall
complete the clinical training program prior to secking modification. The Board of Phanmacy
may require the respondent to pass an cxauﬁil‘al.ion related 1o the content of the pmgram.‘

420 Respondent shall take and pass the MPJE examiriation within 60 days from the
date of this order. Failure to pass the exsmination may result in the suspeasion of the licease

- until such time as a passing score is achieved. Respondeant shall not engage in the practice of the
" profession until respondent has passed the examination and has boca so notified by the Board in

421 Respondent ispmhibitedﬁomservingasthe@onsiblemanagao&phmmacy
orsupewisingphmmz;cyintuns. | v

422 SUPERVISING PHARMACIST AGREEMENT -

’I‘hcsupcrvisingpbmmacistssignsanamandmtbcy:

1. Havcrcvicmd,am.awaxeoﬂandum;lastmdsd;clumsofdwOrder.

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
OONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND AGREED ORDER - PAGE IS
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Agree to be a supervising pharmacist and provide quartecly reports concerning:

Y 2.
a. obey the laws and rules of practice of pharmacy;
b. obey rules of employment and job performance;
c. relationship with other employees and customers:
d any other relevant matters.
LEVELS OF SUPERVISION
X Specific Percentage Supervision requires that a supervising pharmacist have

contact with and/or personally be present for supervision at feast forty (40)
percent of the time or 2 ¥; hours — 3 % hours per day;

This percentage may be decreased by the reviewing board member upon
submission of an employment description to 40 percent the first year, 30 percent

thcsecondycar,and20thcmiMyworlasasthcdiscm@nofthcmﬁcwing

. board member.

4.23  The respondent shall submit to the Board of Pharmacy, within thirty (30) days of

the cffective date of the Order, policy and procedures relating to:

A Pharmacy Board Investigator will coritact the respondeat to determine if the respondent

the process of receiving written and telephone prescriptions, filling the
prescriptions, and checking the label and the product to prevent ervors;

disposition of prescription filling crrors which shall include, but not be limited to:
documentation of filling errors, description of filling errors, explanation of how
filling errors occurred, notification of patient and physician, and steps to be taken
to preveat future errors;

morrcpmtsshz;ﬂ be kept for two (2) years;

is in compliance with the policy and procedures.

. 424 The respondent must implement a quality assurance pmgram with thirty (30) days

of receipt of the Order.

qulhymmkdhedcduptmi;ﬁonﬁlﬁngandnﬁﬁm%md
the number of exrots in filling o Iabeling prescriptions. The respondent shall

* maintain a log of all exrors in prescription filling. The log shall be maintained at

the pharmacy and made availzbie to Pharmacy Board Investigators and Staffat
their request. . .

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT,
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Develop an effective quality assurance set of criteria or guidclines by which to
monitor patient profiles for inappropriate, excessive or non-therapeutic quantitics
of medications. An outline of the process and screening questions must be
submitted to the Disciplinary Authority for approval.

A Pharmacy Board Investigator will contact the Respondent to determine if the
respondent is in compliance with the quality assurance program.

4.25 The Respondent shall comply with the Board's probation surveillance program
including appcaring in person for intervicws upon request at various intervals and with
reasonable notice. ‘

4.26 Respondent may submit a writien request for modificationofthe Board’s Order for
his pharmacist license only, no sooner than three years from the date of this order. Respondent, at
the Board’s discretion shali personally appear before the Board of Phammacy

4.27 At the conclusion of the stayed suspension, Respondent, if requested by the
Board, shall appear before the Board of Pharmacy prior to secking reinstatement of his license to

: pmciicc pharmacy.

428 Respondent shall assume all costs associated thh the compliance of this Order.

429  If dic respondent violates any provision of this Order in any respect, the Board of
Pharmacy, after giving the respondent notice and the opportunity to be heard, may SET ASIDE
THE STAY ORDER AND IMPOSE THE SUSPENSION OF THE RESPONDENT'S

LICENSURE OR MAY .imposc any sanction as appropriate under RCW 18.130.160 to protect

the public, or may take emergency action ordering summary suspension or restriction or
limitation of the respondeat’s practice as authorized by RCW 18.130.050,

. 430 Within 10 days of the effective date of this order, Respondent shall thoroughly
complete the attached Healthcare Integrity and Protection Data Bank Reporting Form (Section
1128E of the Social Security Act) and retum it 1 the disciplining authority.

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT, )
mmwowsoruwmaanemom-moa ”
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[T IS FURTHER ORDERED that all parties shall be bound by the terms and conditions
of this Order. Any failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Order wil] subject the
respondent’s license 10 practice as a pharmacist to further disciplinary action.

I, Michael S. Jones, Respondent, certify that I have read this Stipulated Findings of Fact,

- Conclusions of Law and Agreed Order in its entirety; that my counse! of record, if any, has fully

" explained the legal significance and consequence of it; that [ fully understand and agree to all of

it; and that it may be presented lo the Board of Phammcy without my appearance. If the Board
accepts thc Stipulated Findings of Fact, Conclusxoas of Law and Agreed Order, 1 understand that

[ will recéive a signed copy. ; /
Z72
Mi€hacl S. Jonds, RPhZ :

R« dent
e
~“W. Bemard Batnnan

WSBA #8849
- Attorney for Respondent

(J

STIPULATED FINDINGS OF FACT, :
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VID M. HANKINS o

Section 5: Order
The Board of Pharmacy accepts and caters tnis Stipulated Findings of Fact, Conc’(usions
of Law and Agreed Order.

. DATED this _/ gayof f%m%_%

Statc of Washington
Departnent of Health
oatd o

B W@g@— RAL

C.ALZOLA R.PH

Panel Chai .
Preseitted by: anel Chair -

WSBA #19194 .
Assistamt Attomey General Prosecutor

Notice of Presentation Waived and Approved
As to Forin:

WEBA #8849

A Mm:yfcr}lapondcm

ALY

WMWQSOFI'ACI}
w&axmuopqup:mmm-rmw

-
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Appendix D

1999 Version of Uniform Disciplinary Act
RCW 18.130



requested;.and information -required-by.the secretary neces-
sary to. establish whether there are grounds for denial of a
registration or issuance of a condmonal registration under
_chapter 18.130 RCW. 11991 ¢ 3 § 263; 1987 ¢ 150 § 68.]

18 122 090 Approval of educatlonal programs The
secretary shall establish, by rule the- stand_z_irds and procedures
for ;approval_'of, educational programs and alternative training.
The secretary may- utilize or. contract with .individuals or
organizations. havmg expertise in the profession or in
education to assist in.the evaluations.. The secretary shall
establish. by, ru]e the standards and procedures for revocation
of approval of education programs. .The standards and
procedures set shall apply equally to educational programs
and training-in the United States:and in forelgn jurisdictions.
The secretary may. estabhsh a fee for. -educational . program
evaluations. [1991 ¢ 3 § 264; 1987 c. 150 § 69.]

18.122.100 . Examinations. (1) The‘date and location
of examinations shall. be established by the secretary.
Applicants who have.been found by the secretary to meet the
other requirements-for licensure .or certification shall be
scheduled for the next examination following the filing of
‘the application.. The secretary shall establlsh by rule the
examination application deadline.

(2) The secretary. or the secretary’s desrgnees shall
éxamine ‘each applicant, by ‘means determined-most effective,
on subjects appropriate to the scope of practice, as applica-
ble: - Such examinations shall be limited to the purpose of
determining whether the applicant possesses the minimum
skill .and:knowledge necessary to. practice’ competently.

*"::(3) The examination papers, all grading:of the. papers,
and the grading.of any practical work shall be preserved for
a period of not less than one year after the secretary has
made.and published- the decisions. :All.examinations shall be
conducted under fair and wholly: impartial methods.

(4) Any applicant failing to make the required. grade in
the first examination may ‘take up to three subsequent

" examinations as the applicant desires upon prepaying a fee
determined by the secretary under RCW 43.70.250 for each
subsequent examination. Upon failing four examinations, the
secretary may. invalidate the original application:and require
such remedial educauon before the person may- take future
examinations. e :

(5) The secretary. may approve an exammauon prepared
or administered. by a private:testing agency. or association of
licensing agencies for use by an applicant . in meeting the
credentialing requirements. [1989 1st ex.s. ¢ 9.§ 310; 1987
c 150 § 70.]

Effective date—Severablllty——1989 Ist ex.s. ¢ 9: See RCW
43.70.910 and 43.70.920. : . .

) 18.122.1'1 0 . Applications. Applicatiens for
credentialing shall be submitted on forms provided by the
secretary. The secretary may- require any information and
documentation which reasonably relates to the need to
determine whether the applicant meets the criteria for
credentialing provided for in this chapter and chapter 18:130
RCW. Each applicant shall pay a fee determined by the
secretary under RCW 43.70.250.- The fee shall accompany
the application. [1989 Istex.s.c 9 § 311; 1987 c 150 § 71.]

[Title 18 RCW—page 274)
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. Effective date——Severabrhty——1989 1st. €X.8: €. 9: .See RCW ;

43 70910 and 43:70.920.

commonly accepted standards of ‘education_and, -experience
for the professron Thrs section applres only ‘to those
individuals who file an application’ for waiver wrthm one
year of the establishment of the authonzed pracnce [1991
c 3 § 265; 1987 ¢ 150 § 72.]

18.122. 130 Endorsement. An apphcant holdmg a
credential in another state may be credentialed to practice in
this state without examination if the secretary determines that
the other state’s credentla]mg standards are substantra]ly
equlvalent to the standards in this state. [1991 c3 § 266;
1987 ¢-150 § 73] . _ :

v 18._122.140. Renewals. The secretary: shall .establish by
rule the procedural requirements.and fees for renewal .of a
credential. Failure to renew shall invalidate the credential
and all privileges granted by the credential. If a license or
certificate has lapsed for-a period longer, than three years, the
person shall demonstrate.competence to the satisfaction of
the secretary by taking continuing education courses,. or
meeting other standards determined by the secretary [1991
c3§267 1987c150§74] : , S

218122, 150 Apphcatlon of umform dlsc1plmary act.
The uniform disciplinary act; chapter 18.130 RCW, shall
govern the issuance and denial of credentials, unauthorized
practice, and the discipline of persons credentialed under this
chapter. “The secretary shall. be the: disciplining authority
under this- chapter [1991.¢ 3 §- 268 1987 e 150 § 75.]

apphes toa busmess or professmn regulated under the laws
of this ‘state if this chapter is _specifically referenced in the
laws regulating that busmess or professron [1987 c 150 §
76] :

18.122.900 Section ceptions" Section captions as
used in this chapter do not constitute any part of the law.

(1987 ¢ 150 § 77.)

18.122.901 Severability—1987 ¢ 150. If any.proyi-
sion of this act or its application to any person_or circum-
stance is held invalid, the remainder of the act or the
application of the provision to other persons or circumstanc-
es is not affected. [1987 ¢ 150 § 80.] _
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ty and confidence in the various practices of health care.
(1994 spss. ¢ 9§ 601; 1991 ¢ 332 § L; 1986 c 259 § 1 1984
c 279 §1]

Sevérability—Headings and captrons not law—Effectlve date—
1994 sp.s. ¢ 9: ‘See RCW 18.79.900 through 18.79:902."

Application to scope of” practlce—l991 ¢ 332: "Nothing in sections
1 through-39 of this act is intended to change the scope of practice of any
health care profession referred to in sections 1 through 39 of this act.”
[1991 ¢ 332 § 46.],

Captions not law——199i c.332: "Sectron captlons and part headings
as used in this act constrtute no part of the law " [1991 c 332 § 43.]

Severability—1986 ¢ 259: "If any provrsron of this act or its
application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of
the act or-the application of the provision to other persons ‘of circumstances
is not affected * [1986 ¢ 259.8. 152]

18.130. 020 DefinitiOns Unless the:context clearly
requires otherwise, the definitions in [hlS sectron apply
throughout this chapter: - :

(1) "Disciplining authority” means the agency, board or
commission having the authority to. take drsc1p1mary action
against a holder of, or applicant for, a professional or
business license upon a finding of a violation of this.chapter
or a chapter specified under RCW :18.130.040.

(2) "Department" means the department of ‘health. .

(3) "Secretary"”'means the secretary of health or the
secretary’s. designee.

(4) "Board" means any of those boards specrﬁed in
RCW 18.130.040.

(5) "Commission" means any’ of the commrssrons
spec1ﬁed in RCW 18.130.040. S .

. (6) "Unlicensed practice" means: -

(a) Practicing a profession or operatmg a busmess
identified in RCW 18.130.040 without’ holdmg a valid,
unexpired, unrevoked, and unsuspended license to do so; or

(b) Representing to a consumer, through offerings,
advertisements, or use of a professional title or designation,
that the individual is quahfied to practice a profession or
operate a business identified in RCW"18.130.040, without
holding a valid; unexpired, unrevoked and unsuspended-
license to do so.

Ty "stcxplmary action" means sanctlons ldentlﬁed in

RCW 18.130.160. -

(8)-"Practice . review". ‘means an 1nvest1gat1ve aud1t of
records related to the complaint, w1thout prior identification
of specific patient or consumer names, or an assessment of
the conditions; circumstances, and methods of the
professional’s practice related to.the complamt, to-determine

. whether unprofessional conduct may‘ have- been commltted

(9) "Health agency"” means city and county ‘health
departments and the department of ‘health.

(10) "License," "licensing," and: "hcensure -shall ‘be
deemed equivalent to the terms: “license," "hcensmg,
“licensure,” “certificate," "certification,"and “registration" as
those terms are defined-in‘RCW '18. 120 020.7'[1995 ¢ 336 §
1; 1994 sp.s. ¢ 9 § 602;.1989 st ex.s. c 9‘§ 3 23'7 1986 ¢ 1259
§2;1984¢279 § 23 - - - i e b

Severablhty—Headmgs and- captrons not law-—Eﬁ‘ectlve date—
1994 sp.s c 9 See RCW 18 79 900 through 18.79. :902. G

‘15t exis. ¢ 9: See RCW
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+ 18.130.040_ _Application to certain. .professions—
=Authorlty of. secretary—Grant or denial of licenses:—
Procedural rules. (1) This chapter applies only to the
secretary and the boards and commissions having jurisdiction
in relation to the professions licensed under the chapters
specified in this section. . This chapter does not apply to any
business:or profession. not hcensed under the’ chapters
specified in this section. ’ o

(2)(a) The secretary has authonty under tlus chapter in
rélation to the. following professions: '~

@ Dlspensmg opticians hcensed under chapter 18.34
RCW;, -

(u) Naturopaths hcensed under chapter 18.36A RCW;

(iif) Midwives licensed under chapter 18.50 RCW;

(iv) Ocularists licensed under chapter 18.55 RCW:;

- (v) Massage operators and ‘businesses Iicensed under
chapter 18.108 RCW;

" (vi) Dental hygienists licensed under. chapter 18.29
RCW;
(vii), Acupunctunsts licensed under chapter 18. 06 RCW;

- (viii) Radiologic technologists certified and X-ray

technicians registered under chapter 18.84 RCW;.

(ix) Respiratory care practitioners licensed under chapter
18.89 RCW;

x) Persons reglstered or certified under chapter 18 19
RCW;
. (xi) Persons registered as nursmg pool operators under
chapter 18.52C RCW;

(xii) Nursing assistants regxstered or certified under
chapter 18.88A RCW; :

(xiii) Health care assistants certlfled under chapter
18.135 RCW;

(xiv) Dietitians and nutrmomsts certified under chapter
18.138 RCW;

(xv),Chemical dependency professronals certified under
chapter 18.205 RCW;

. (xvi) Sex offender treatment provrders certrﬁed under

chapter 18.155 RCW;

(xvii) Persons licensed and certified under chapter 18 73
RCW or RCW 18.71.205;

{(xviii) Persons registered as adult family home prov1ders
and resident managers under RCW 18.48.020; :

(xix) Denturists licensed under chapter 18.30 RCW; and
- . (xx)-Orthotists and prosthetlsts licensed under chapter
18.200 RCW.

b). The boards and commissions. havmg authorlty under
-thrs chapter are as follows:
. (i) The podiatric medical board as estabhshed in chapter
18.22 RCW;

(i1) The chiropractic quality assurance commission as
established in chapter 18.25 RCW:;

(iii) The dental quality assurance commission as
established in chapter 18.32 RCW;

(iv) The-board of hearing and speech as estabhshed in
chapter 18.35 RCW;

(v) The board of examiners for nursing home adminis-
trators as established in chapter 18.52. RCW;

(vi) The optometry board as established-in chapter 18.54
RCW governing licenses issued under. chapter 18.53-RCW;

(vii) The board of osteopathic medicine and’surgery s
established in chapter 18.57 RCW governing licenses issued
under chapters 18.57 and 18.57A RCW:;

[Title 18 RCW—page 276]
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(viii) The board of pharmacy-as-established in' chapter
18 64 RCW governing hcenses 1ssued under chapters 18. 64
and 18.64A RCW;-

(ix) The medical quality assurance commission as
establishéd in chapter 18.71 RCW governing licenses and
registrations issued under chapters 18.71 and 18.71A RCW;

(x) The board of: physrcal therapy as established in
chapter 18.74 RCW; -

(xi).The board of occupatmnal therapy practice as
established in- chapter 18.59 RCW;

(xii) The nursing care quality assurance commission-as
established in chapter 18.79 RCW govermng licenses issued
under that chapter; -

(xiii) The exammmg board of psychology and rts
disciplinary commrttee as estabhshed in chapter 18.83 RCW;
and

. (xiv) The vetermary board of govemors as established
in chapter 18.92 RCW. .

(3) In. addition to the authority to dlsc1p11ne license
holders, the disciplining authority has the authority to grant
or deny Ticenses based on the conditions and criteria estab-
lished in this chapter and the chapters specified in subsection
(2) of this section. This chapter also governs any investiga-
tion, hearing, or proceeding relating to denial of licensure or
issuance of a license conditioned on the applicant’s compli-
ance with an order. entered pursuant to RCW 18.130.160 by
the disciplining authority.

(4) All disciplining authontres shall adopt procedures to
ensure substantially consistent apphcatron of this chapter, the
Uniform Disciplinary Act, among the disciplining authorities
listed in subsection (2) of this section. [1998 c 243 § 16.
Prior: 1997 ¢ 392 § 516; 1997 ¢ 334 § 14; 1997 c 285 § 13;
1997 ¢ 275 § 2; prior: 1996 ¢ 200 § 32; 1996 c 81 § 5;
prior: 1995°¢ 336 § 2; 1995 ¢ 323'§ 16; 1995 ¢ 260 § 11;
1995.c.1 § 19 (Initiative. Measure No. 607, approved
November 8, 1994); prior: 1994 sp.s. ¢ 9 § 603; 1994 ¢ 17
§ 19; 1993.¢ 367 § 4;-1992 ¢ 128 § 6; 1990 ¢ 3§ 810;
pnor 1988 c 277 § 13;°1988-c 267 § 22; 1988 ¢ 243 § 7;
prior: 1987 ¢ 512 §22;-1987.c 447 § 18; 1987 ¢ 415 §17;
1987 ¢ 412 § 15; 1987 ¢ 150 § 1; 'prior: 1986 ¢ 259 § 3;
1985 ¢ 326 § 29; 1984 ¢ 279 §-4.]

Effective dates—1998 ¢ 243 See RCW 18.2_0_5.900.

Short'title—Flndlngs;Constructlon—Conﬂlct with federal

requirements—Part headings and. captions-not lJaw—1997 ¢ 392: See
notes following RCW 74.39A.009.

Effective dates—1997.c 334:.. See note following RCW 18.89.010.
~ Intent—Purpose—1997 ¢ 285: See RCW 18.200.005.

Severability-—1997.c 285: See RCW 18.200.901.

‘Severability-—1996 ¢ 200: See RCW 18.35.902.

Effective date—1996.¢.81: See note following RCW 70.128.120.

. Effective date—1995 ¢ 336 §§ 2 and.3: "Sections 2 and 3 of this act
are necessary: for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or

- safety, or support of the state government and its exlsung public institutions,

and shall take ‘effect 1mmed1ate]y [May 11,71995]." [1995 ¢ 336 § 11.)
Efféctive date—1995 c 260 §§ 7-11: See note following RCW

18.48.010.

Short’ tltle—Severablhty—1995 el (Imtlatlve Measure No. 607):
See RCW 18.30. 900-and*18:30.901."

Severabrhty-—Headmgs and captions not law—Effective date—
1994 Sp.s.:€ 90 -See RCW: 18.79.900 through 18.79.902.

Index, part headings not- law—Severablhty—Effectrve dates—
Appllcatron—1990 € 3: See RCW 18.155.900.through 18.155.902.

-; Severability-—1987 ¢ 512: See.RCW 18.19.901.
(1998 Ed.)
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Severability—1987 c 447: See RCW 18.36A.901.
Severability—1987 c 415:" See RCW 18.89.901.

Effective date—Severability—1987 c 412 See RCW 18.84. 901 and
18. 84.902.

Severability—1987 ¢ 150: See RCW 18.122. 901
. Severability—1986 ¢ 259: See note following RCW 18.130.010.

18.130.045 Massage practitioners—Procedures
governing ‘convicted prostitutes. RCW 18.108.085 shall
govern the issuance and revocation of licenses issued or
applied for under chapter 18.108 RCW to or by persons
convicted of violating RCW 9A.88.030, 9A.88.070,
9A.88.080; or 9A.88.090 or equivalent local ordmances
[1995 €353§3.]

'18.130.050 Authority of drsclplmmg authonty The
disciplining authority has the following authority:

() To adopt amend ‘and Tescind such rules as are
deemed necessary to’ carry -out this chapter; RS

(2) To 1nvest1gate all complaints or reports of unprofes-
sional conduct as defined in this chapter and to hold heanngs
as provided in this chapter, .

(3) To issue subpoenas and administer oaths in connec-
tion with any rnvestrgatron, hearmg, or proceedmg held
under this chapter;

" (4) To take or cause depositions to be taken and use
. other discovery’ procedures as needed in any mvestrgatlon
hearing, or proceeding held under this chapter;

(5) To:compel attendance of witnesses at heanngs

(6) In the course of investigating a complamt or report
of unprofessional conduct, to conduct practice reviews;

(7) To take emergency action ordering summary
suspension of a Ticense, or restriction or limitation of the
licensee’s practice pendmg proceedmgs by the drscrphmng
authonty, )

(8) To use a presiding officer as authorized in RCW
18.130.095(3) or the office of administrative hearings as
authorized in chapter 34.12 RCW to conduct hearings. ‘The
disciplining authority shall make the final decision regarding
disposition of the license unless the disciplining authority
elects to delegate in wntmg the final decrsron to the presrd—
mg officér; '

-(9) To use individual ‘members of the- boards to ‘direct
investigations. However, the member of the board shall not
subsequently participate in the heating of the case;

(10) To enter into contracts:for professional services
determmed to be necessary for adequate enforcement of thls
chapter; -

(11)-To contract with'licensees or other persons or
orgamzatrons to' provrde services necessary*for the monitor-
ing and supervision of licensees who are placed on’ iproba-
tion, whose proféssional activities are restricted, or who -are
for any authorizéd purpose sub]ect to momtorlng by the
dlscrplrmng authority; *- :

“(12)To: adopt standards of professronal conduct or
practrce

-(13)To. grant or deny Ircense applrcatrons, and i the
event of a finding of unprofessronal conduct by: an’ applrcant
or:license: holder, to'impose -any: sanction: agamst a hcense
apphcant or hcense holder provrded by thrs chapter" kS

(1998 Ed.)
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(14) To designate individuals authorized to sign subpoe-
nas and statements of charges;

(15) To establish panels consisting of three or more
members of the board to perform any duty or authority
within the board’s jurisdiction under this chapter;

(16) To review and audit the records of licensed health
facilities’ or services’ quality assurance committee decisions
in which a licensee’s practice. privilege or employment is
terminated or restricted. Each health facility or service shall
produce and make accessible to the disciplining authority the
appropriate records and otherwise facilitate the review and
audit. Information so gained shall not be subject to discov-
ery or introduction into evidence in any civil action pursuant
to. RCW 70.41.200(3).- [1995 ¢ 336 § 4. Prior: 1993 c 367
§ 21; 1993 ¢ 367 § 5; 1987 ¢ 150 § 2; 1984 ¢ 279 § 5.]

’ Severabllrty—l987 ¢ 150: See RCW 18.122.901.

18.130.060 Additional authority of secretary. In
addition to the authority specified in RCW 18.130. 050 the
secretary has the following additional authority:

(1) To employ such investigative, administrative, and
clerical staff as necessary for the enforcement of this
chapter;

(2) ‘Upon the request of a board, to appomt not more
than three pro tem members for the:purpose of participating
as members of oneé or more committees of the board in
connection with proceedings specifically identified in the
request. Individuals so appointed must meet the same
minimum. quahﬁcatrons as regular members of the board.
While.serving as board members pro‘tem, persons so
appointed have all the powers, duties, and immunities, and
are entitled to the emoluments, including travel expenses. in
accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060, of regular
members of the board. The chairperson of a committee shall
be a.regular member of the board appointed by the board
chairperson. Committees have authority to act as directed by
the board with respect to all. matters concerning the review,
investigation, and adjudication of all complaints, allegations,
charges, and matters subject to the jurisdiction of the board.
The authority to:-act through committees does not restrict the
authority of the ‘board to act as a single body at any phase of
proceedings within the board’s jllI‘lSdlCthll Board commit-
tees'may make interim orders and issue final decisions with
respect. to matters and cases delegated to the committee by
the board.. Final decisions may be appealed as.provided in
chapter. 34.05.RCW, the Administrative Procedure Act;

+ (3) To establish fees to be paid for witnesses, expert
witnesses, and consultants used in any investigation and to
establish fees to witnesses in any agency ad]udlcatrve
proceedmg as authorized by RCW 34.05.446;

-(4) To.conduct investigations and practrce reviews:at: the
d1rec|10n of the. disciplining authority and to issue subpoenas;
administer oaths, and.take depositions in the course of
conducting ‘those. investigations and practrce reviews at. the
drrectlon of the'disciplining authority;. .- * .

. (5)-To have: the health piofessions regulatory program
establrsh a system to-recruit potential public. members, to
review;the: qualrﬁcatlons of such potential members, and. to
p vrde orlentatron to those public members appomted

ursuant to- law by the governor orithe secretary to the
boards and commissions specified in RCW 18:130. 040(2)(b);
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and to-the advisory committees.and councils for professions
specified in RCW 18.130.040(2)(a). [1995 ¢ 336 § 5; 1991
c.3 § 269; 1989 c-175 § 68; 1987 ¢ 150 § 3; 1984 ¢ 279 §
6]
Effective date—-]989 c175: See note following RCW 34.05.010.
Sevemblhty—1987 ¢ 150: See RCW 18:122.901.

18.130. 065 Ru]es, pohcles, and orders—Secretary S
role. The secretary of health shall review and coordinate all
proposed ‘rules, interpretive statements, policy' statements,
and declaratory orders, as defiried in chapter 34.05 RCW,
that-are proposed for adoption or issuance by any health
profession ‘board or commission vested with rule-making
authority identified under RCW 18.130.040(2)(b). The
secretary shall review the proposed policy statements and
declaratory orders against criteria that include